
Rude : [booklet]

Maričić, Ana; Katalinić, Franjo; Hruškova Hasan, Michaela; Mileusnić,
Marta

Other document types / Ostale vrste dokumenata

Publication year / Godina izdavanja: 2020

Permanent link / Trajna poveznica: https://urn.nsk.hr/urn:nbn:hr:169:490051

Rights / Prava: In copyright / Zaštićeno autorskim pravom.

Download date / Datum preuzimanja: 2024-05-14

Repository / Repozitorij:

Faculty of Mining, Geology and Petroleum 
Engineering Repository, University of Zagreb

https://urn.nsk.hr/urn:nbn:hr:169:490051
http://rightsstatements.org/vocab/InC/1.0/
http://rightsstatements.org/vocab/InC/1.0/
https://repozitorij.rgn.unizg.hr
https://repozitorij.rgn.unizg.hr
https://repozitorij.unizg.hr/islandora/object/rgn:1411
https://dabar.srce.hr/islandora/object/rgn:1411


���� 

���� 



����� �������� ���� �������� ��� ���� ���������� ��� ����
�������� ������������� Ȁ� ������ ��� ������������ �� �������
���������������������ǣ 
 

������������������–���������������������������� 
��������������������������������������� 
 

�ŽŽŬůĞƚͬ>ĞƚĂŬ͗��ŶǑϯ͕�ǀ͘�ϭϮ�–�ZƵĚĞ 
dĞǆƚͬdĞŬƐƚ͗� �͘�DĂƌŝēŝđ͕� &͘� <ĂƚĂůŝŶŝđ͕�D͘� ,ƌƵƓŬŽǀĂ�,ĂƐĂŶ͕�
D͘�DŝůĞƵƐŶŝđ 
hE/�'-Z'E&��ĂŐƌĞď 
ϮϬϮϬ 
 
&ƌŽŶƚ�ƉĂŐĞͬEĂƐůŽǀŶĂ�ƐƚƌĂŶĂ͗�^ƚ͘��ĂƌďĂƌĂ�DŝŶĞ�ͬ�ZƵĚŶŝŬ�ƐǀĞƚĂ��ĂƌďĂƌĂ�� 



 

͛ 

���� 
Rude is a small village located in the Samobor highlands,    
4 km away from the town of Samobor near Zagreb. It is 
known for its copper and iron mine, St. Barbara Mine, 
which is now open as tourist site. The mine experienced its 
golden age during the 16th century. The amount of copper 
extracted here at that time was twice of England’s, four 
times of Norway’s and reached a third of Swedish copper 
production from the Falun mine [1].  
The St. Barbara Mine has been a part of the Register of 
Cultural Heritage of the Republic of Croatia since 2015 – 
and it can be 
found on the list 
of protected  
cultural  
properties. 

ZƵĚĞ�ƐƵ�ŵĂůŽ�ŵũĞƐƚŽ�Ƶ�^ĂŵŽďŽƌƐŬŽŵ�ŐŽƌũƵ͕�
ƵĚĂůũĞŶŽ�ϰ�Ŭŵ�ŽĚ�ŐƌĂĚĂ�^ĂŵŽďŽƌĂ͕�ďůŝǌƵ��ĂͲ
ŐƌĞďĂ͘�WŽǌŶĂƚŽ�ũĞ�ƉŽ�ƌƵĚŶŝŬƵ�ďĂŬƌĂ�ŝ�ǎĞůũĞǌĂ�
^ǀĞƚĂ��ĂƌďĂƌĂ͕�ŬŽũŝ�ũĞ�ĚĂŶĂƐ�ŽƚǀŽƌĞŶ�Ƶ�ƚƵƌŝƐƟēŬĞ�
ƐǀƌŚĞ͘�^ǀŽũĞ�ǌůĂƚŶŽ�ĚŽďĂ�ƌƵĚŶŝŬ�ĚŽǎŝǀůũĂǀĂ�Ƶ�ϭϲ͘�
ƐƚŽůũĞđƵ͕�ŬĂĚĂ�ũĞ�ŬŽůŝēŝŶĂ�ŝƐŬŽƉĂŶŽŐ�ďĂŬƌĂ�ďŝůĂ�
ĚǀŽƐƚƌƵŬŽ�ǀĞđĂ�ŶĞŐŽ�Ƶ��ŶŐůĞƐŬŽũ͕�ēĞƚǀĞƌŽƐƚƌƵŬŽ�
ǀĞđĂ�ŽĚ�EŽƌǀĞƓŬĞ͕�Ă�ĚŽƐĞǌĂůĂ�ũĞ�ƚƌĞđŝŶƵ�ƉƌŽĚƵŬͲ
ĐŝũĞ�ƓǀĞĚƐŬŽŐ�ƌƵĚŶŝŬĂ�Ƶ�&ĂůƵŶƵ�΀ϭ΁͘ 
ZƵĚŶŝŬ�ƐǀĞƚĂ��ĂƌďĂƌĂ�ƐĞ�ŽĚ�ϮϬϭϱ͘�ŐŽĚŝŶĞ�ŶĂůĂǌŝ�Ƶ�
ZĞŐŝƐƚƌƵ�ŬƵůƚƵƌŶŝŚ�ĚŽďĂƌĂ�ZĞƉƵďůŝŬĞ�,ƌǀĂƚƐŬĞ�–�
ŶĂ�ůŝƐƟ�ǌĂƓƟđĞŶŝŚ�ŬƵůƚƵƌŶŝŚ�ĚŽďĂƌĂ͘ 
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Minerals rich in copper and iron were found here.  
Copper was extracted from sulphur-containing  
minerals such as chalcopyrite. It is distinguished by its 
golden colour. The name originates from Greek words 
halkos and pyrites, which means copper and sparkler. 
Chalcopyrite is sometimes called “fool’s gold”. Iron 
was obtained from hematite and siderite ore. Hematite 
is often red and was named after its colour (the Greek 
word haima means blood). The colour of siderite 

h�ƐĂŵŽŵ�ůĞǎŝƓƚƵ�ƐĞ�ŶĂůĂǌĞ�ŵŝŶĞƌĂůŝ�ŬŽũŝ�
ŽďŝůƵũƵ�ďĂŬƌŽŵ�ŝ�ǎĞůũĞǌŽŵ͘��ĂŬĂƌ�ƐĞ�ĚŽďŝǀĂŽ�
ŝǌ�ŵŝŶĞƌĂůĂ�ŬŽũŝ�ƐĂĚƌǎĞ�ƐƵŵƉŽƌ�ŬĂŽ�ƓƚŽ�ũĞ�ŚĂůͲ
ŬŽƉŝƌŝƚ͘�WƌĞƉŽǌŶĂƚůũŝǀ�ũĞ�ƉŽ�ǌůĂƚŶŽũ�ďŽũŝ�Ă�ŶĂǌŝǀ�
ũĞ�ĚŽďŝŽ�ŽĚ�ŐƌēŬĞ�ƌŝũĞēŝ�ŚĂůŬŽƐ�ŝ�ƉǇƌŝƚĞƐ�ƓƚŽ�
ǌŶĂēŝ�ďĂŬĂƌ�ŝ�ŬƌĞƐŝǀĂĐ͘�,ĂůŬŽƉŝƌŝƚ�ƐĞ�ƉŽŶĞŬĂĚ�
ŶĂǌŝǀĂ�ŝ�ͣůĂǎŶŽ�ǌůĂƚŽ͘͞��ĞůũĞǌŽ�ƐĞ�ĚŽďŝǀĂůŽ�ŝǌ�
ŚĞŵĂƟƚŶĞ�ŝ�ƐŝĚĞƌŝƚŶĞ�ƌƵĚĞ͘�,ĞŵĂƟƚ�ũĞ�ēĞƐƚŽ�
ĐƌǀĞŶĞ�ďŽũĞ�ƉŽ�ŬŽũŽũ�ũĞ�ŝ�ĚŽďŝŽ�ŝŵĞ�;ŐƌēŬĂ�
ƌŝũĞē�ŚĂŝŵĂ�ǌŶĂēŝ�ŬƌǀͿ͘��ŽũĂ�ƐŝĚĞƌŝƚĂ�ǀĂƌŝƌĂ�ŽĚ�
ǎƵƚĞ�ĚŽ�ƚĂŵŶŽ�ƐŵĞĜĞ͕�Ă�ŶĂǌŝǀ��ĚŽůĂǌŝ�ŽĚ�
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varies from yellow to dark brown, and the name 
originates from the Greek word sideros, which 
means iron.  
Other minerals such as gypsum, galena, quartz,  
barite, pyrite, sphalerite, and goethite also appear in 
the deposit. Gypsum can vary from white, grey, 
green to red, and it has been mined for a short  
period of time. It is usually accompanied by a very  
similar mineral called anhydrite. 

ŐƌēŬĞ�ƌŝũĞēŝ�ƐŝĚĞƌŽƐ�ƓƚŽ�ǌŶĂēŝ�ǎĞůũĞǌŽ͘�KƐŝŵ�
ƌƵĚŶŝŚ�ŵŝŶĞƌĂůĂ�Ƶ�ůĞǎŝƓƚƵ�ƐĞ�ƉŽũĂǀůũƵũƵ�ŝ� 
ĚƌƵŐŝ�ŵŝŶĞƌĂůŝ�ŬĂŽ�ƓƚŽ�ƐƵ�ŐŝƉƐ͕��ŐĂůĞŶŝƚ͕�
ŬǀĂƌĐ͕�ďĂƌŝƚ͕�Ɖŝƌŝƚ͕�ƐĨĂůĞƌŝƚ�ŝ�ŐĞƟƚ͘�'ŝƉƐ͕�ŬŽũŝ�ƐĞ�
ũĞĚŶŽ�ŬƌĂƚŬŽ�ǀƌŝũĞŵĞ�ŝ�ƌƵĚĂƌŝŽ͕�ŵŽǎĞ�ďŝƟ�
ďŝũĞůĞ͕�ƐŝǀĞ͕�ǌĞůĞŶĞ�ŝůŝ�ĐƌǀĞŶĞ�ďŽũĞ͘�hǌ�ŶũĞŐĂ�
ƐĞ�ēĞƐƚŽ�ƉŽũĂǀůũƵũĞ�ŝ�ǀƌůŽ�ƐůŝēĂŶ� 
ŵŝŶĞƌĂů�ĂŶŚŝĚƌŝƚ͘� 
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The history of mining in Rude probably dates back to  
antiquity. The first reliable data on copper mining appears 
in 1481, when the settlement was called Rovi (Rovuje). In 
1530, Leonard Gruber became the earliest known owner 
of Rude and Samobor. He was succeeded by Sebastian 
Moscon, who modernized the mine in the 1530s, and most 
likely opened new shafts. Moscon owned and managed the 
mine for nearly four decades. In 1582, Krsto Ungnad 
became the new owner. He increased the quality of 
Samobor’s copper by opening new plants and employing 
200 workers of German descent. Later, the mine 
ownership alternated between the Erdödy and Auersperger 
families. The significance of Rude is reflected in the fact 
that it was a stop on the copper road [2]. In 1591, the first 
miners' strike in today's territory of Croatia happened 

WŽǀŝũĞƐƚ�ƌƵĚĂƌĞŶũĂ�Ƶ�ZƵĚĂŵĂ�ŶĂũǀũĞƌŽũĂƚŶŝũĞ�ƐĞǎĞ�Ƶ�
ĂŶƟŬƵ͘�Wƌǀŝ�ƉŽƵǌĚĂŶŝ�ƉŽĚĂĐŝ�Ž�ƌƵĚĂƌĞŶũƵ�ďĂŬƌĂ� 
ƉŽƚũĞēƵ�ŝǌ�ϭϰϴϭ͘�ŐŽĚŝŶĞ�ŬĂĚĂ�ƐĞ�ŶĂƐĞůũĞ�ǌǀĂůŽ�ZŽǀŝ�
;ZŽǀƵũĞͿ͘�>ĞŽŶĂƌĚ�'ƌƵďĞƌ�ϭϱϯϬ͘�ŐŽĚŝŶĞ�ƉŽƐƚĂũĞ�ŶĂũƌĂͲ
Ŷŝũŝ�ƉŽǌŶĂƟ�ǀůĂƐŶŝŬ�ZƵĚĂ�ŝ�^ĂŵŽďŽƌĂ͘�EĂŬŽŶ�ŶũĞŐĂ�ĚŽͲ
ůĂǌŝ�^ĞďĂƐƟũĂŶ�DŽƐĐŽŶ�ŬŽũŝ�ϭϱϯϬ-ŝŚ�ŐŽĚŝŶĂ� 
ŵŽĚĞƌŶŝǌŝƌĂ�ƌƵĚŶŝŬ�ŽƚǀŽƌŝǀƓŝ�ŶĂũǀũĞƌŽũĂƚŶŝũĞ�ŝ�ŶŽǀĂ�ŽŬͲ
ŶĂ͘�DŽƐĐŽŶ�ũĞ�ďŝŽ�ŶĂ�ēĞůƵ�ƌƵĚŶŝŬĂ�ƐŬŽƌŽ�ēĞƟƌŝ� 
ĚĞƐĞƚůũĞđĂ͘�'ŽĚŝŶĞ�ϭϱϴϮ͘�ŵŝũĞŶũĂ�ŐĂ�<ƌƐƚŽ�hŶŐŶĂĚ�ŬŽũŝ�
ƉŽǀĞđĂǀĂ�ŬǀĂůŝƚĞƚƵ�ƐĂŵŽďŽƌƐŬŽŐ�ďĂŬƌĂ͘�hŶŐŶĂĚ�ŽƚǀĂƌĂ�
ŶŽǀĂ�ƉŽƐƚƌŽũĞŶũĂ�ŝ�ǌĂƉŽƓůũĂǀĂ�ϮϬϬ�ƌĂĚŶŝŬĂ�ŶũĞŵĂēŬŽŐ�
ƉŽƌŝũĞŬůĂ͘�<ĂƐŶŝũĞ͕�ǀůĂƐŶŝƓƚǀŽ�ƌƵĚŶŝŬĂ�ƐĞ�ŝǌŵũĞŶũƵũĞ�ŝǌͲ
ŵĞĜƵ�ŽďŝƚĞůũŝ��ƌĚƂĚǇ�ŝ��ƵĞƌƐƉĞƌŐĞƌ͘��ŶĂēĂũ�ZƵĚĂ�ŽĚƌĂͲ
ǎĂǀĂ�ƐĞ�Ƶ�ēŝŶũĞŶŝĐŝ�ĚĂ�ũĞ�ďŝŽ�ƉŽƐƚĂũĂ�ŶĂ�ƉƵƚƵ�ďĂŬƌĂ�΀Ϯ΁͘�
'ŽĚŝŶĞ�ϭϱϵϭ͘�ƚƵ�ŝǌďŝũĂ�Ɖƌǀŝ�ƌƵĚĂƌƐŬŝ�ƓƚƌĂũŬ�ŶĂ�ƉŽĚƌƵēũƵ�
ĚĂŶĂƓŶũĞ�,ƌǀĂƚƐŬĞ͘�K�ƐĂŵŽŵ�ƌƵĚŶŝŬƵ�ƐĂǌŶĂũĞ�ƐĞ�ŝǌ�ŽƉŝͲ
ƐĂ�ŵĞƓƚƌĂ�;ŬĂƐŶŝũĞ�ŝ�ƌƵĚĂƌƐŬŽŐ�ƐƵĚĐĂͿ��ŶĚƌŝũĞ�WƌŝďŝůĞ�ŝǌ�
ϭϳϴϱ͘�ŐŽĚŝŶĞ͘� 



 

͟ 

here. The master Andrija Pribila (later also the mining 
judge) wrote the first description of the mine in 1785. 
Following the reorganization of mining in the Austro-
Hungarian Monarchy, the Mining Substitution Court 
was established in Samobor in 1788. The court 
primarily dealt with mining rights and their 
implementation. The mine in Rude was one of the 
largest copper mines in Austro-Hungarian Monarchy. 
The last owners of Rude were Franz Reizer and later 
on, in 1926, Mavro Bernstein. The mine was closed in 
the middle of the last century. The revitalization began 
in 2002, and in 2012 it was opened for tourists. 

^ůŝũĞĚŽŵ�ƌĞŽƌŐĂŶŝǌĂĐŝũĞ�ƌƵĚĂƌĞŶũĂ�Ƶ��ƵƐƚƌŽ-
hŐĂƌƐŬŽũ�DŽŶĂƌŚŝũŝ�ƐĞ�ϭϳϴϴ͘�ŐŽĚŝŶĞ�ŽƐŶŝǀĂ�Ƶ�
^ĂŵŽďŽƌƵ�ZƵĚĂƌƐŬŝ�ƐƵďƐƟƚƵĐŝŽŶŝ�ƐƵĚ�ŬŽũŝ�ƐĞ�
ƉƌǀĞŶƐƚǀĞŶŽ�ďĂǀŝŽ�ǌĂƓƟƚŽŵ�ƌƵĚĂƌƐŬŽŐ�����ƉƌĂͲ
ǀĂ͘�^ŵĂƚƌĂ�ƐĞ�ĚĂ�ũĞ�ƌƵĚŶŝŬ�Ƶ�ZƵĚĂŵĂ�ďŝŽ�ŵĞͲ
ĜƵ�ŶĂũǀĞđŝŵ�ƌƵĚŶŝĐŝŵĂ�ďĂŬƌĂ�Ƶ��ƵƐƚƌŽ-
hŐĂƌƐŬŽũ͘��ĂĚŶũŝ�ǀůĂƐŶŝĐŝ�ZƵĚĂ�ƐƵ�ďŝůŝ�&ƌĂŶǌ�ZĞͲ
ŝǌĞƌ�Ă�ŬĂƐŶŝũĞ͕�ϭϵϮϲ͘�ŐŽĚŝŶĞ͕�DĂǀƌŽ��ĞƌŶƐƚĞŝŶ͘�
^ƌĞĚŝŶŽŵ�ƉƌŽƓůŽŐ�ƐƚŽůũĞđĂ�ƌƵĚŶŝŬ�ƐĞ�ǌĂƚǀĂƌĂ͘�
ZĞǀŝƚĂůŝǌĂĐŝũĂ�ǌĂƉŽēŝŶũĞ�ϮϬϬϮ͕͘�Ă�ϮϬϭϮ͘�ŐŽĚŝŶĞ�
ũĞ�ŽƚǀŽƌĞŶ�Ƶ�ƚƵƌŝƐƟēŬĞ�ƐǀƌŚĞ͘ 
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:ĞĚŝŶĂ�ƉŽƐƚŽũĞđĂ�ũĂŵƐŬĂ�ŬĂƌƚĂ�ƌƵĚŶŝŬĂ͕�ŬŽũƵ�ũĞ�
ŶĂĐƌƚĂŽ�&ƌĂŶ��ƵŐƵƐƚ�,ĞĞƌŵĂŶŶ͕�ƐƉŽŵŝŶũĞ�ƐĞ�
ϭϳϳϳ͘�ŐŽĚŝŶĞ͘�EĂŐĂĜĂ�ƐĞ�ŬĂŬŽ�ũĞ�Ɛ�ǀƌĞŵĞŶŽŵ�
ŶĂĚŽƉƵŶũĂǀĂŶĂ�Ɛ�ŶŽǀŝŵ�ƉŽĚĂĐŝŵĂ͘�WƌĞŵĂ�ŬĂƌƟ͕�
ƌƵĚĂƌƐŬŝ�ƌĂĚŽǀŝ�ƐƵ�ĚŽƐĞǌĂůŝ�ĚŽ�ǀĞůŝŬŝŚ�ĚƵďŝŶĂ͘�EĂ�
ŶũŽũ�ƐĞ�ǀŝĚŝ�ǀĞůŝŬĂ�ƌĂǌŐƌĂŶĂƚŽƐƚ�ŚŽĚŶŝŬĂ�ƚĞ�ũĞ�ǀŝĚͲ

The only existing underground map of the mine, 
drawn by Fran August Heermann, is mentioned in 
1777. It was probably updated over time, adding new 
corridors. According to the map, the mining 
operations reached great depth. It shows an     
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ůũŝǀ�ŝ�ƚůŽĐƌƚ��ƌƵĚĂƌƐŬŝŚ�ŽďũĞŬĂƚĂ͗�ͣƌƵĚĂƌƐŬĂ�
ŬŽǀĂēŶŝĐĂ͕�ƉĞđ�ǌĂ�ŽĚƐƵŵƉŽǀŝƌĂŶũĞ͕�ƚĂůŝŽŶŝĐĂ͕�
ǌŐƌĂĚĂ�ǌĂ�ƉƌĞďŝƌĂŶũĞ�ƌƵĚĞ͕�ǀĞůŝŬĂ�ǌŐƌĂĚĂ�Ƶ�
ŝƐƚƵ�ƐǀƌŚƵ͕�ŝǌƉŽĚ�ŽǀĞ�ĚŽ�ƉƌŽƚŽŬĂ�ǌŐƌĂĚĂ�ǌĂ��
ƉƌĂǎĞŶũĞ�ƌƵĚĞ�ŝ�ŶĂƉŽŬŽŶ�ŬĂƉĞůŝĐĂ�Ɛǀ͘��ŶƚƵŶĂ�
Ɛ�ƉƌĞĚǀŽƌũĞŵ�ƐĂ�ƚƌŝũƵ�ƐƚƌĂŶĂ͘͞�΀ϯ΁͘ 

�����������������������������������������������͙͙͠͝Ȁ�����������ā��������Ǧ
��������������������������������͙͙͠͝Ǥǡ������������������������ǣȀȀ
���Ǥƪ����Ǥ���Ȁ������Ȁ͚͚̻͛͜͜͜͝͝�͛͘Ȁ͙͙͚͙͛͛͛͜͝͠͡� 

astonishing branching of mining corridors and the 
ground plan of mining facilities such as: “mining smithy, 
desulphurization furnace, smelter, ore screening 
building, large building for the same  
purpose, below the flow of ore roasting buildings can 
be found and finally the chapel of St. Anthony with a 
vestibule accessible from three sides is marked.”[3].  
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Barbara of Cilli (1381 – 1451) was the wife of the Czech 
and Hungarian king and the Holy Roman Emperor  
Sigismund of Luxembourg. She spent most of her life in 
Samobor, where she studied alchemy in the basement of 
her estate. She studied conversion of copper into silver and 
gold. In fact, she applied amalgamation and alloying to 
copper using other metals. Her experiments represent the 
beginning of alchemy in Croatia. After her husband's 
death, she dressed in black, which was why she received 
the nickname the “Black Queen”. Towards the end of her 
life, she retired to 
MĢlník Castle in the 
Czech Republic, where 
she continued to 
practice alchemy until 
her death [4]. 

�ĂƌďĂƌĂ��ĞůũƐŬĂ�
;ϭϯϴϭ͘�–�ϭϰϱϭ͘Ϳ�ďŝůĂ�ũĞ�
ƐƵƉƌƵŐĂ�ēĞƓŬŽŐ�ŝ� 
ƵŐĂƌƐŬŽŐ�ŬƌĂůũĂ�ƚĞ�
ŶũĞŵĂēŬŽ-ƌŝŵƐŬŽŐ�ĐĂƌĂ��ŝŐŵƵŶĚĂ�>ƵŬƐĞŵďƵƌƓŬŽŐ͘�
sĞđŝ�ĚŝŽ�ƐǀŽŐ�ǎŝǀŽƚĂ�ƉƌŽǀĞůĂ�Ƶ�^ĂŵŽďŽƌƵ�ŐĚũĞ�ƐĞ�ƉŽĚͲ
ƌƵŵƵ�ƐǀŽŐ�ƉŽƐũĞĚĂ�ďĂǀŝůĂ�ĂůŬĞŵŝũŽŵ͘�WƌŽƵēĂǀĂůĂ�ũĞ�
ƉƌĞƚǀŽƌďƵ�ďĂŬƌĂ�Ƶ�ƐƌĞďƌŽ�ŝ�ǌůĂƚŽ͘�dƵ�ƐĞ�ǌĂƉƌĂǀŽ�ƌĂĚŝůŽ�
Ž�ĂŵĂůŐĂŵŝƌĂŶũƵ�ŝ�ůĞŐŝƌĂŶũƵ�ďĂŬƌĂ�Ɛ�ĚƌƵŐŝŵ�ŵĞƚĂůŝŵĂ͕�
ƓƚŽ�ƵũĞĚŶŽ�ƉƌĞĚƐƚĂǀůũĂ�ŝ�ǌĂēĞƚĂŬ�ĂůŬĞŵŝũĞ�Ƶ�,ƌǀĂƚƐŬŽũ͘�
EĂŬŽŶ�ƐŵƌƟ�ŵƵǎĂ�ŽďůĂēŝ�ƐĞ�Ƶ�ĐƌŶŽ�ǌďŽŐ�ēĞŐĂ�ũĞ�ĚŽďŝůĂ�
ŶĂĚŝŵĂŬ�ͣ�ƌŶĂ�ŬƌĂůũŝĐĂ͘͞�<ƌĂũĞŵ�ǎŝǀŽƚĂ�ƐĞ�ƉŽǀůĂēŝ�Ƶ�
ĚǀŽƌĂĐ�DĢůŶşŬ�Ƶ��ĞƓŬŽũ�ŐĚũĞ�ƐĞ�ŶĂƐƚĂǀŝůĂ�ďĂǀŝƟ� 
ĂůŬĞŵŝũŽŵ�ĚŽ�ƐǀŽũĞ�ƐŵƌƟ�΀ϰ΁͘ 
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Legend has it that mining in Rude was also done 
by dwarfs known as “Bergmans”. The Bergmans 
lived in a narrow corridor inside the mine and 
mined gold and other valuable metals. Workers 
often described them as dwarfs with yellow 
skin, large beards, snake eyes, and dressed in 
green clothing.  

>ĞŐĞŶĚĂ�ŬĂǎĞ�ĚĂ�ƐƵ�Ƶ�ZƵĚĂŵĂ�ƚĂŬŽĜĞƌ������
ƌƵĚĂƌŝůŝ�ŝ�ƉĂƚƵůũĐŝ�ƉŽǌŶĂƟ�ŬĂŽ�ͣ�ĞƌŐŵĂŶŝ͘͞�
�ĞƌŐŵĂŶŝ�ƐƵ͕�ǎŝǀũĞůŝ�Ƶ�ũĞĚŶŽŵ�ƵƐŬŽŵ� 
ŚŽĚŶŝŬƵ�ƵŶƵƚĂƌ�ƌƵĚŶŝŬĂ�ƚĞ�ƐƵ�ŝǌ�ŶũĞŐĂ� 
ŝƐŬĂƉĂůŝ�ǌůĂƚŽ�ŝ�ĚƌƵŐĞ�ǀƌŝũĞĚŶĞ�ŵĞƚĂůĞ͘� 
ZĂĚŶŝĐŝ�ƐƵ�ŝŚ�ēĞƐƚŽ�ŽƉŝƐŝǀĂůŝ�ŬĂŽ�ƉĂƚƵůũŬĞ�
ǎƵƚĞ�ŬŽǎĞ͕�ǀĞůŝŬĞ�ďƌĂĚĞ͕�ǌŵŝũƐŬŝŚ�ŽēŝũƵ�ŝ� 
ŽĚũĞǀĞŶĞ�Ƶ�ǌĞůĞŶŽ�ƌƵŚŽ͘� 
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The St. Barbara Mine is the only mine revitalized for 
visitors. It all started on the initiative of late Professor 
Boris ainkovec from the Faculty of Mining, Geology 
and Petroleum Engineering, in 2002 with the 
exceptional commitment of local Folklore Ensemble 
KUD “OƓtrc”. 350 m of the Kokel and Holy Trinity 
shafts and 220 m of access roads to both shafts were 
renovated. The support of timber can be seen in one 
part of the mine. Solid rock, which does not need 
support in another part of the mine, allows the visitor 
to see the minerals. 
              

 

ZƵĚŶŝŬ�ƐǀĞƚĂ��ĂƌďĂƌĂ�ũĞĚŝŶŝ�ũĞ�ƌƵĚŶŝŬ�ƵƌĞĜĞŶ�ǌĂ�
ƉŽƐũĞƟƚĞůũĞ͘�^ǀĞ�ũĞ�ǌĂƉŽēĞůŽ�ŶĂ�ŝŶŝĐŝũĂƟǀƵ� 
ƉƌŽĨĞƐŽƌĂ�ZƵĚĂƌƐŬŽ-ŐĞŽůŽƓŬŽ-ŶĂŌŶŽŐ�ĨĂŬƵůƚĞͲ
ƚĂ͕�ƉƌŽĨ͘�Ěƌ͘�ƐĐ͘��ŽƌŝƐĂ�aŝŶŬŽǀĐĂ͕�ϮϬϬϮ͘�ŐŽĚŝŶĞ�ƚĞ�
Ƶǌ�ŝǌŶŝŵŶŽ��ǌĂůĂŐĂŶũĞ�ůŽŬĂůŶŽŐ�<ƵůƚƵƌŶŽ�ƵŵũĞƚͲ
ŶŝēŬŽŐ�ĚƌƵƓƚǀĂ�<h��ͣKƓƚƌĐ͘͞�KďŶŽǀůũĞŶŽ�ũĞ�ϯϱϬ�
ŵ�ƌŽǀŽǀĂ�<ŽŬĞů�ŝ�ƐǀĞƚŽ�dƌŽũƐƚǀŽ�ƚĞ�ϮϮϬ�ŵ�ƉƌŝůĂǌͲ
ŶŝŚ�ƉƵƚĞǀĂ�ĚŽ�ŽďĂ�ƌŽǀĂ͘�h�ũĂŵŝ�ƐĞ�ŵŽŐƵ�ǀŝĚũĞƟ�
ĚŝũĞůŽǀŝ�Ɛ�ĚƌǀĞŶŽŵ�ƉŽĚŐƌĂĚŽŵ͕�ŬĂŽ�ŝ�ĚŝũĞůŽǀŝ�ƐĂ�
ǎŝǀŽŵ�ƐƟũĞŶŽŵ�ƓƚŽ�ŽŵŽŐƵđƵũĞ�ƌĂǌŐůĞĚĂǀĂŶũĞ�
ŵŝŶĞƌĂůĂ͘ 
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The tour of 350 m of mine shafts takes about forty 
minutes. The temperature is constantly about 11 °C. The 
mine is open to visitors from March 21st to December 4th 
on weekends, holidays and public holidays from 10 a.m. 
to 6 p.m. Protective equipment is provided for everyone 
and the mine can be visited only with a tour guide. For 
more information about St. Barbara Mine please visit 
http://www.rudnik.hr/en/.  
 

KďŝůĂǌĂŬ�ϯϱϬ�ŵ�ƌƵĚŶŝŬĂ�ƚƌĂũĞ�ŽŬŽ�ēĞƚƌĚĞƐĞƚ�ŵŝͲ
ŶƵƚĂ͕�Ă�ƚĞŵƉĞƌĂƚƵƌĂ�ũĞ�ŬŽŶƐƚĂŶƚŶŽ�ŽŬŽ�ϭϭ�Σ�͘�
ZƵĚŶŝŬ�ũĞ�ǌĂ�ƉŽƐũĞƟƚĞůũĞ� 
ŽƚǀŽƌĞŶ�ŽĚ�Ϯϭ͘�ŽǎƵũŬĂ�ĚŽ�ϰ͘�ƉƌŽƐŝŶĐĂ�ǀŝŬĞŶĚŽŵ͕�
ďůĂŐĚĂŶŝŵĂ�ŝ�ƉƌĂǌŶŝĐŝŵĂ�ŽĚ�ϭϬ�ĚŽ�ϭϴ�Ś͘��ĂƓƟƚŶĂ�
ŽƉƌĞŵĂ�ũĞ�ǌĂ�ƐǀĂŬŽŐ� 
ŽƐŝŐƵƌĂŶĂ�ƚĞ�ƐĞ�ƌƵĚŶŝŬ�ƉŽƐũĞđƵũĞ�ŝƐŬůũƵēŝǀŽ�Ƶǌ�
ƐƚƌƵēŶŽ�ǀŽĚƐƚǀŽ͘��Ă�ǀŝƓĞ��ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂĐŝũĂ�Ž�ƌƵĚŶŝŬƵ�
ƉŽŐůĞĚĂũƚĞ� 
ŚƩƉ͗ͬͬǁǁǁ͘ƌƵĚŶŝŬ͘ŚƌͬŚƌͬ͘� 
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An important part of Rude's cultural heritage 
is the salty cheese and walnut cake called 
Rudarska greblica (Miner’s cake). This cake 
was once the main meal of miners. In the end 
of 2007, the cake was declared an intangible 
cultural heritage of the Republic of Croatia. 
The event called “Miners Cake’s Day” has 
been held regularly since 1985 on the first 
weekend of July. As part of the event, a 
competition in baking the best cake is  
organized͘� 

sĂǎĂŶ�ĚŝŽ�ŬƵůƚƵƌŶĞ�ďĂƓƟŶĞ�ZƵĚĂ� 
ƉƌĞĚƐƚĂǀůũĂ�ƐůĂŶŝ�ŬŽůĂē�ŽĚ�ƐŝƌĂ�ŝ�ŽƌĂŚĂ�ǌǀĂŶ�
ZƵĚĂƌƐŬĂ�ŐƌĞďůŝĐĂ͘�KǀĂũ�ŬŽůĂē�ũĞ�ŶĞŬĂĚĂ�
ďŝŽ�ƐĂƐƚĂǀŶŝ�ĚŝŽ�ŽďƌŽŬĂ�ƌƵĚĂƌĂ͘�<ƌĂũĞŵ�
ϮϬϬϳ͘�ŐƌĞďůŝĐĂ�ũĞ�ƉƌŽŐůĂƓĞŶĂ����ŶĞŵĂƚĞƌŝͲ
ũĂůŶŽŵ�ŬƵůƚƵƌŶŽŵ�ďĂƓƟŶŽŵ�ZĞƉƵďůŝŬĞ�
,ƌǀĂƚƐŬĞ͘�DĂŶŝĨĞƐƚĂĐŝũĂ�ǌǀĂŶĂ�ͣ�ĂŶŝ� 
ZƵĚĂƌƐŬĞ�ŐƌĞďůŝĐĞ͞�ƐĞ�ƌĞĚŽǀŝƚŽ�ŽĚƌǎĂǀĂ�ŽĚ�
ϭϵϴϱ͘�ŐŽĚŝŶĞ�ƉƌǀŽŐ�ƐƌƉĂŶũƐŬŽŐ�ǀŝŬĞŶĚĂ͕�Ƶ�
ƐŬůŽƉƵ�ŬŽũĞ�ƐĞ�ŽƌŐĂŶŝǌŝƌĂ�ŶĂƚũĞĐĂŶũĞ�Ƶ�
ƉĞēĞŶũƵ�ŶĂũďŽůũĞ�ŐƌĞďůŝĐĞ͘� 
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΀ϭ΁ �ƵĚĂŬ͕�E͘�;ϭϵϵϰͿ͗�ZƵĚŶŝŬ�Ƶ�ƌƵĚĂŵĂ�ŬƌĂũ�

^ĂŵŽďŽƌĂ�ŽĚ�ys͘�ĚŽ�ŬƌĂũĂ�ys//͘�ƐƚŽůũĞđĂ͕�ZĂĚŽǀŝ�
�ĂǀŽĚĂ�ǌĂ�ŚƌǀĂƚƐŬƵ�ƉŽǀŝũĞƐƚ�&ŝůŽǌŽĨƐŬŽŐĂ�
ĨĂŬƵůƚĞƚĂ�^ǀĞƵēŝůŝƓƚĂ�Ƶ��ĂŐƌĞďƵ͕�sŽů͘�Ϯϳ�EŽ͘�ϭ͕�ϳϱ
–ϵϳ 

΀Ϯ΁ aĞďĞēŝđ͕��͘�;ϮϬϬϭͿ͗�,ƌǀĂƚƐŬŝ�ŝ�ŵĞĜƵŶĂƌŽĚŶŝ�
ďĂŬƌĞŶŝ�ŝ�ƐŽůŶŝ�ƉƵƚĞǀŝ�Ƶ�ĚŝũĞůƵ��ƵƌŽƉĞ͘�ZƵĚĂƌƐŬŽ-
ŐĞŽůŽƓŬŽ-ŶĂŌŶŝ�ǌďŽƌŶŝŬ͕�ǀŽů͘ϭϯ͕�ϳϯ–ϳϲ 

΀ϯ΁ >ĂƐǌŽǁƐŬŝ͕��͘�;ϭϵϰϮͿ͗�WŽǀŝũĞƐŶŝ�ƉƌĞŐůĞĚ�ƌƵĚĂƌƐƚǀĂ�
ŝ�ƌƵĚĂƌƐŬŝŚ�ƵƐƚĂŶŽǀĂ�Ƶ�,ƌǀĂƚƐŬŽũ͕�^ůĂǀŽŶŝũŝ͕�
DĞĜŝŵƵƌũƵ�ŽĚ�ŶĂũƐƚĂƌŝũŝŚ�ǀƌĞŵĞŶĂ�ĚŽ�ŐŽĚ͘�ϭϴϱϵ͕�
ZƵĚĂƌƐƚǀŽ�Ƶ�,ƌǀĂƚƐŬŽũ͘�ϭ͕�/ǌĚ͘�ŶĂŬů͘�ŽĚũĞůĂ�
ŚƌǀĂƚƐŬĞ�ĚƌǎĂǀŶĞ�ƟƐŬĂƌĞ͕�ϭϳϮ–ϮϮϵ 

΀ϰ΁ WĂƵƓĞŬ-�ĂǎĚĂƌ͕�^͘�;ϮϬϬϴͿ͗��ĂƌďĂƌĂ��ĞůũƐŬĂ�ŬĂŽ�
ĂůŬĞŵŝēĂƌŬĂ�Ƶ�^ĂŵŽďŽƌƵ͕�'ŽĚŝƓŶũĂŬ�ŶũĞŵĂēŬĞ�
ŶĂƌŽĚŶŽƐŶĞ�ǌĂũĞĚŶŝĐĞ͕�s�'�:ĂŚƌďƵĐŚ͕�ďƌ͘�ϭϱ͕�
Ϯϳϱ–ϮϴϬ 
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